City of Columbia, Missouri



Meeting Minutes

Planning and Zoning Commission

, or El Brodanay	Thursday, October 5, 2017 7:00 PM	Regular Meeting	Council Chambers Columbia City Hall 701 E. Broadway
------------------	--------------------------------------	-----------------	---

I. CALL TO ORDER

II. APPROVAL OF

		MR. STRODTMAN: Good evening. Welcome to the October 5, 2017, City of	
	Col	umbia Planning and Zoning Commission regular meeting. May I have a roll call,	
	please.		
		MS. LOE: Yes, Mr. Chairman. We have eight; we have a quorum.	
		MR. STRODTMAN: Thank you, Ms. Loe.	
Present:	8 -	Dan Harder, Sara Loe, Joy Rushing, Lee Russell, Anthony Stanton, Rusty Strodtman, Brian Toohey and Michael MacMann	
Excused:	1 -	Tootie Burns	
AL OF AGENDA			
		MR. STRODTMAN: Any changes to the agenda, Mr. Zenner?	
		MR. ZENNER: No, there aren't, Mr. Chairman.	

MR. STRODTMAN: Any changes to the agenda, Mr. Zenner?
MR. ZENNER: No, there aren't, Mr. Chairman.
MR. STRODTMAN: All Commissioners are good with the agenda?
(Unanimous vote for approval.)
MR. STRODTMAN: Okay.

III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

MR. STRODTMAN: We were sent the September 21, 2017, minutes. Were there any corrections or changes needed to those minutes? I see none. A thumbs up on approval of the September 21, 2017, minutes?

(Unanimous vote for approval.)

MR. STRODTMAN: All thumbs up. Thank you.

IV. SUBDIVISIONS

Case # 17-190

A request by A Civil Group (agent) on behalf of McGary Properties, LLC (owner) for approval of a one-lot final minor plat on A (Agricultural) zoned land, to be known as *McGary Subdivision Plat 2*, and for approval of a design adjustment to 29-5.1(d) to waive sidewalk construction along St. Charles Road. The 0.78-acre subject site is located at the northwest corner of St. Charles Road and Tower Drive.

MR. STRODTMAN: First item of the evening is a subdivision item. At this time, I would like to ask any Commissioner who has had any ex parte communications prior to this meeting related to Case 17-190, please disclose that now so all Commissioners have the same information to consider on behalf of this case in front of us.

Case No. 17-190

A request by A Civil Group (agent) on behalf of McGary Properties, LLC (owner) for approval of a one-lot final minor plat on A (Agricultural) zoned land, to be known as McGary Subdivision Plat 2, and for approval of a design adjustment to 29-5.1(d) to waive sidewalk construction along St. Charles Road. The 0.78-acre subject site is located at the northwest corner of St. Charles Road and Tower Drive.

MR. STRODTMAN: May we have a staff report, please.

Staff report was given by Mr. Clint Smith of the Planning and Development Department. Staff recommends approval of the final plat for McGary Subdivision Plat 2, and denial of the design adjustment to waive sidewalk construction as required by 29-5.1(d).

MR. STRODTMAN: Thank you, Mr. Smith. Commissioners, any questions for staff? Mr. MacMann?

MR. MACMANN: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Planner Smith, could you go back to that oblique aerial for me, please?

MR. SMITH: I'm sorry. Which one?

MR. MACMANN: The oblique aerial, the one you had up just a moment ago. Thank you. It's my understanding that to the east of this property, we have development and/or potential development happening rather quickly; is that a correct assumption?

MR. SMITH: I could tell you the Coliseum Preliminary Plat is located in this general vicinity here, so they have an approved preliminary. So they could move forward with a final plat at any point. I don't -- I'm not aware of any other movement on that site since a

preliminary was approved; you know --

MR. MACMANN: To the south of the property across the street, is there any development in that area?

MR. SMITH: Large property to the south? Not that I'm aware of.

MR. MACMANN: Okay. And then as we move to the east, just west -- excuse me -just east of the trail junction, those large -- there. Anything in that general area? Anything in the pipeline, so to speak?

MR. SMITH: No, not that I'm aware of.

MR. MACMANN: All right. That's the question I have for the moment. Thank you very much.

MR. STRODTMAN: Commissioners, any additional questions for staff? I see none. As we do in past practice, this is a subdivision matter, not a public a hearing, but if there is someone in the audience that would like to come forward and give us any relevant information to this case, you're welcome to do that at this time. We just ask that you give us your name and address, please.

MR. MURPHY: Good evening, Chairperson, and chair members. My name is Kevin Murphy; I'm with A Civil Group. Our offices are at 3401 Broadway Business Park Court. I've got some additional photos and information here, if you wouldn't mind. If you wouldn't mind, after this discussion, if I could get those back, save them -- save some paper for City Council. I'm here representing McGary Properties. McGary Properties consists of Terry McGary and his wife, and his sister, Deidre. These are the only four properties that they own are just immediately around this property. And they're just doing some housecleaning. They inherited this property from the parents who bought it in the late '60s, early '70s, and they've inherited that, and they want to kind of get it all cleaned up so their heirs do not have to deal with it. The -- the pictures I'm showing you here shows quite a bit better the slope on this ground. The graphic that Mr. Smith had up there was not quite accurate. The sidewalk goes back a good bit further than what that is, and some of those fill areas in there, I would say, average four and a half feet deep. On the back of all those pictures, I kind of drew a graphic, as well, with some additional information below it. But, yes, four-and-a-half to five-foot deep fill. The cost that Clint was discussing was just for the fill dirt alone in that area. We would also have to reconstruct the driveway that is on the south end of this property as that driveway does cross onto this property, and so -- so not only leveling that out or actually raising it above the street six inches for the curb and then a 2 percent slope to the property line, and then come back down at a three-to-one slope extends it out even further. If you're finished looking at those pictures, on the -- the diagram that I had, I've got -- I've got a few notes on there. A typical sidewalk location is seven to twelve feet closer to the street, so that's a 38-foot pavement and a 66-foot right-of-way, or a 32-foot street and a 50-foot right-of-way. Sidewalk construction of 214 feet of improved -- of improved sidewalk on an improved street would be -- at \$4 a square foot would be a little over \$4,000. Sidewalk construction with the grading on here is over twice of that -- for the grading only is \$10,200. That equates to 13 percent of the cost of the lot. If we assume 45 -- this lot is worth \$45,000, that's 13 percent for the dirt work only that it adds, 23 percent of the cost for the dirt work and the walk, and then if we had to build the -- rebuild the driveway and such, that would be 49 percent of the cost -- almost 50 percent of the cost of what they would be able to get for this ground would be building a sidewalk in this area, considering all those factors. With this plat, the owners dedicated over 7,000 square foot of right-of-way, which alone, at \$1.68 a foot -- a square foot, would equate to 21 percent or 13 percent of the cost of the lot, and it totals 21 percent of the ground that they initially had. Again, there's one and a half miles of street between Richland and I-70, and there's currently 610 feet of existing sidewalk on there, possibly 600 more if the Coliseum development does eventually final plat, and that is a 43-lot subdivision. So for us to put in a third of the amount of sidewalk for one lot versus 43 lots is quite a bit more burdensome. The closest sidewalk connector is -- was pointed out is the Hominy Creek trail. Half of a -- it's about a half mile, and that's accessing it through a private development and private streets or three-quarters of a mile where there's a public street access to that. As far as improving St. Charles Road, the current CIP list has -- in the one- to ten-year range has 16 street projects. Each of those projects come at no cost to the adjacent property owners and some are actually getting compensation for right-of-way and easements with that, and they're getting sidewalks constructed with that, as well. In the ten-years-plus CIP program, there's 92 street projects. Again, no cost to the adjacent owners. So if you take 92 projects at 16 projects per ten years, that equals 5.75 ten-year project cycles, so that's 57 and a half years to get through all of these projects. St. Charles Road is not on the ten-years-plus CIP plan. I think -- I had spoken with a supervising engineer at the City, and after he had really reviewed it -- I don't think he was the one that did take a look at it, but he agreed that if there was an area for a variance, this would be one of them. He had suggested again the payment in lieu of for the \$4 or whatever it takes for the concrete square footage work. I think we would request that the City entertain the dedication of this additional right-of-way, this 7,000 square feet, as an in lieu of payment.

MR. STRODTMAN: Thank you, sir. MR. MURPHY: Thank you. MR. STRODTMAN: Commissioners, any questions of this speaker? Mr. MacMann? MR. MACMANN: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Thank you, sir. I do hear your point. I spent a lot of time very near this property. I'll just tell you that right away. And one of the reasons I asked Planner Smith about these developments is I know that many of the adjacent property owners are looking to sell and/or develop, so I was just wondering where we were on this, and St. Charles will develop. And you're so right about the CIP. The CIP is reflected -- is reflective -- my view -- of how much money the City has or doesn't have. That's why it's 57-and-a-half-year cycle. So you would -- I wanted to get back to the fee in lieu of because I'd love to see sidewalks on St. Charles or -- because we have problems. We've built out and then we've got no sidewalks, and everyone wants a variance. You would -- your view of payment in lieu of would be the donation of the property alone, no other cash or anything like that to help the City in the future? I mean, you're presenting the sidewalk is going to cost \$20,000 for you guys to do, or something like that. Right?

MR. MURPHY: Yes, and/or more --

MR. MACMANN: Twenty --

MR. MURPHY: Again, we haven't really -- as a single-lot subdivision, and us being hired to really just do the subdivision process, the platting process, we haven't really studied this, you know, immensely. But the -- yeah. We consider that 7,000 square feet, you know, over \$11,000 in value.

MR. MACMANN: I -- and I don't -- I don't doubt you there.

MR. MURPHY: An initial -- initial fee --

MR. MACMANN: Yeah.

MR. MURPHY: What I have heard from the City Counselor in a previous variance request was, if you read the -- I don't know if you've got a copy of the policy resolution on unimproved sidewalks. In there, it notes that -- somewhere in here -- that the sidewalk -- the payment in lieu of is for the sidewalk to be constructed on that property. The -- I think the City Counselor has backed that up, but they said that there could only be a seven-year time limit associated with that, that we can't -- the City can't indefinitely hold this money, that there has to be a time limit within it that they can use that property to do something towards a project. So I think that's where that stands. So, to me, it's just less paperwork for the City and everything else to, you know, keep track of this. I know they're always trying to cut back on -- on items that they have to consistently track, land developments and things of that nature, but --

MR. STRODTMAN: Any additional questions of this speaker? MR. TOOHEY: I have one. MR. STRODTMAN: Yes, sir.

MR. TOOHEY: In looking at the pictures, you know, when someone decides to develop on this -- to build on this lot, I mean, it looks like they're going to have haul in a bunch of dirt anyway just to build a house. So --

MR. MURPHY: No. They'll build into the hill. The house will come down. It may require a small retaining wall if they want a flat area in front of the house, but, basically, the access, it'll be open-ended two-story ranch. The access will be and the garage will be on the backside of the house.

MR. STRODTMAN: Any additional questions, Mr. Toohey? Yes, Ms. Loe?

MS. LOE: Just clarification on the right-of-way. And this is a requirement for being on the major collector, St. Charles.

MR. MURPHY: Yes, it is. But a lot of times that's granted, again, by 40-, 50-, 100 -lot subdivisions where, you know, that -- where somebody is making a decent profit off of ground and can afford to have the ground and can afford to donate that --

MS. LOE: No. I just -- I bring it up because all property owners along St. Charles have to provide that right-of-way to St. Charles. Correct?

MR. MURPHY: If they plat. If the City were to go out and say they wanted to build that road tomorrow, well, you're going to buy that right-of-way from me.

MR. STRODTMAN: Any additional questions, Ms. Loe? Thank you. Additional questions for this speaker, Commissioners? I see none. Thank you, Mr. Murphy. Thank you.

MR. MURPHY: Thank you.

MR. STRODTMAN: Any additional speakers like to come forward? I see none. Thank you. Commissioners, for the discussion, questions for staff? Clarification? Anybody like to get it started?

Ms. Russell?

MS. RUSSELL: This is for staff really. Could you give us the -- you gave -- you listed three options that we could do. Could you do those one more time?

MR. SMITH: Sure. It would basically be -- one would be to recommend approval of the variance, would basically waive all requirement for them to be financially responsible for the sidewalk. One would be to -- to deny the variance, but then consider accepting a fee in lieu instead of construction or allowing the construction, which would basically be denying the variance and plat as it is, if that makes sense.

MR. STRODTMAN: Thank you, Mr. Smith. Ms. Loe?

MS. LOE: Can you comment on any limitations within that? You were describing a three-year requirement, I believe, for the sidewalk to be constructed --

MR. SMITH: Correct.

MS. LOE: -- if the variance was not granted and can you comment on the seven-year limit on payment in lieu?

MR. SMITH: Sure. I'll start with the three years. So in situations such as this where there's necessary public infrastructure, we require some sort of surety and the performance contract is that surety and it guarantees that the infrastructure will be constructed within three years. And then they can extend that if -- if they have not constructed it at that point, as well. But, typically, if you -- if you submit an application for a building permit, sidewalk construction is part of that, as well, so that would trigger it potentially at that point. The seven years, I'm not familiar with a limitation on collecting fee-in-lieu type situations where we would not be able to hold it for X amount of years. So I do know there's some limitation on the performance contract and it may expire, you know, at a seven-year point, but that's kind of a whole different conversation, I think. So maybe that -- maybe that was part of that, but as far as that, unless -- Mr. Zenner has more information.

MR. ZENNER: I was just conferring with our legal counsel, Mr. Caldera. It is -- I believe we may have seven and eight years maybe being misplaced here. The standard performance contract, as Mr. Smith was just explaining, is a three-year standard performance contract. In the event that a performance contract is breached, meaning that the improvements required to be installed have not been done within those three years, the City does have, at a minimum, five additional years in which to seek to get performance out of that original performance contract, which means a total of eight years potentially. We are unaware of any limitation as it relates to a fee in lieu of being able to be applied to a project within its general area within the City's structure or its authority to receive money in light -- or in lieu of an actual improvement. If there is no improvement or the improvement is made -- I am personally aware of this because we have had to refund money that was allocated for a particular improvement after that improvement was funded through another source. So if, in fact, this money is not -- if it's received, it's going to be catalogued with this particular request with this roadway segment and as a CIP project were to become available to have it applied to, it would be coded and applied to this project. Prior practices have not always been able to monitor where that money goes or how it's been received and where it's intended to. You learn from your past mistakes, and we have developed systems that allow us to track the money to the projects that may be impacted by those contributions. So we have vacillated as a Commission and as a Council, I believe, as it relates to payment in lieu of versus the actual requirement of construction, so that is the situation you're in here. You either delay construction until

there's more of a system by which it could be improved, and that may be through other development or it may be through a City project. As Mr. Murphy points out, this particular roadway segment is not on the ten-year CIP. That does not necessarily mean that should development explode in this particular area, that that roadway does not get placed on the ten-year CIP list, or through a -- right now, we're in a ten-year bond window for road construction. It would have to be contemplated and then, obviously, cued in as we look as development. I think, Ms. Loe, you pointed out very accurately, any property along this particular area of St. Charles Road that is proposing to subdivide is required to dedicate right-of-way. They are required to construct sidewalk without the grant of modification to such. Mr. Murphy is also correct that if we were to proceed forward with a roadway project, we would be acquiring potentially, or we would be having dedicated to us for other considerations, right-of-way to facilitate that particular road improvement. Waiver of sidewalk construction is basically the placement of a burden for its construction onto the public at some point in the future.

MR. STRODTMAN: Thank you. Ms. Loe?

MS. LOE: One final question for staff. If the City undertook the sidewalk construction and that modified elevation or apron at the entrance of the driveway, would the City then reconstruct the driveway or that be on the owners responsibility?

MR. ZENNER: That would be our responsibility as a result of the road construction project.

MS. LOE: Thank you.

MR. STRODTMAN: Any additional questions? Mr. Stanton?

MR. STANTON: The city group brought up the possibility of moving the land over. Are we saying that that was going to happen anyway?

MR. STRODTMAN: Yes. That was --

MR. STANTON: There was no value in that deal for us, as the City?

MR. STRODTMAN: As part of the -- in order to be approved, they have to give the right-of-way for St. Charles, since it's -- you know, they have to do that as part of this process regardless. The applicant would like to use that as payment towards -- in lieu of doing the sidewalks. They believe there's a value to that -- those -- you know, that land that they're donating or giving -- you know, giving to the City for a right-of-way -- for a future right-of-way. They would like to see that value be associated with the sidewalk, where normally that would be just required as part of the process. And as we all understand that that -- you know, we're -- we are not requiring them to put sidewalks. They're come to us asking for a change and for a final -- you know, so they're asking for -- right. So that's what's triggering it, not vice versa. Commissioners? Mr. MacMann?

MR. MACMANN: I just have a bit of discussion. It has been --- for sidewalks, it has been our policy in this community for some time to add sidewalks where you could to improve walkability, quality of life, et cetera, et cetera, et cetera. And one of the things we're asked to do all the time is to give sidewalk variances. And sometimes they can't work, like, physically, they don't work. It physically works here. I can -- I understand the financial burden. I would anticipate -- this is just my view -- there's a lot of buzz in the St. Charles area. That property is going up in price. It'll -- it'll certainly develop inside ten years. Whether the City approves that road, I don't know. Our practice of -- or a practice of continually giving sidewalk variances is problematic, because then we come back in the future and the next guy down says you didn't make X, Y, Z did it, why -- you know. He's 100 foot further down or something like that. That's all I have to say. I do not have a motion.

MR. STRODTMAN: Commissioners, any additional discussion? A motion? Mr. MacMann, like to make a motion?

MR. MACMANN: Well, let's just put it to a vote. I move in the Case of 17-190, McGary Subdivision Plat 2, final plat, to approve the plat and to deny the design adjustment.

MS. RUSHING: Second.

MR. STRODTMAN: Thank you, Mr. MacMann for the motion to approve the plat, but not the sidewalk variance adjustment -- design adjustment, and thank you, Ms. Rushing, for a second. Sorry. I'm trying to do two things at once. Is there any additional discussion needed on that motion and second?

Mr. Stanton?

MR. STANTON: Would it be appropriate to add an amendment -- (inaudible).

MS. RUSHING: Not if we're denying -- if we're denying the variance.

MR. STRODTMAN: The motion as is -- as is denying the sidewalk all -- he would -the applicant would be required to build a sidewalk under the current motion as is; that was seconded. Am I correct?

MR. MACMANN: That is -- that is how I put it.

MR. STRODTMAN: Any additional discussion needed? I see none. Can I have a roll call,

Ms. Loe.

MS. LOE: Yes, Mr. Chairman.

Roll Call Vote (Voting "yes" is to recommend approval.) Voting Yes: Mr.

Toohey,

Mr. Harder, Mr. MacMann, Mr. Strodtman, Ms. Rushing. Voting No: Ms. Russell,

Ms. Loe,

Mr. Stanton. Motion carries 5-3.

MS. LOE: Five approve, three denial, motion passes.

MR. STRODTMAN: Thank you, Ms. Loe. Our recommendation will be the motion was approved as was -- so our recommendation will be forwarded to City Council for their consideration and approval or not. Commissioners, if you'll hand your copies forward, and we appreciate the applicant's desire to be environmentally friendly. Thank you, Mr. Murphy.

Motion to approve the plat, but not the sidewalk variance adjustment -- design adjustment

Yes: 5 - Harder, Rushing, Strodtman, Toohey and MacMann

- No: 3 Loe, Russell and Stanton
- Excused: 1 Burns

V. PUBLIC HEARINGS

Case # 17-212

A request by Jones, Schneider & Stevens, LLC (agent), on behalf of the family of George R. Lewis (owners), for permanent R-1 (One-Family Dwelling) zoning, upon annexation, of property at 1001 W. Old Plank Road. The subject property consists of 1 acre and is currently zoned Boone County R-S (Residential Single-Family).

MR. STRODTMAN: Case 17-212. At this time, I would ask any Commissioner who has had any ex parte communications prior to this meeting related to Case 17-212, please disclose that now so all Commissioners have the same information to consider on behalf of the case in front of us. I see none. Thank you.

Case 17-212

A request by Jones, Schneider & Stevens, LLC (agent) on behalf of the family of George R. Lewis (owners) for permanent R-1 (One-Family Dwelling) zoning, upon annexation, of property at 1001 W. Old Plank Road. The subject property consists of one acre and is currently zoned Boone County R-S (Residential Single-Family).

MR. STRODTMAN: May we have a staff report, please.

Staff report was given by Mr. Pat Zenner of the Planning and Development Department. Staff recommends approval of the property located at 1001 W. Old Plank Road. MR. STRODTMAN: Thank you, Mr. Zenner. Commissioners, questions of staff? MR. MACMANN: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Just a clarification. The extension of the force main, the connection to the City sewer, that would be paid for by the property owner?

MR. ZENNER: That would be correct, sir.

MR. MACMANN: All right. Thank you.

MR. STRODTMAN: Any additional questions? I see none. We'll go ahead and open the public hearing.

PUBLIC HEARING OPENED

MR. STRODTMAN: So anyone that's in the public that would like to come forward, we would welcome you at this time. Just please give us your name and address. I see none.

PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED

MR. STRODTMAN: Commissioners, any discussion or questions? Mr. Stanton? MR. STANTON: As it relates to Case 17-121 Lewis Annexation, I move to approve the annexation.

MS. LOE: Second.

MR. STANTON: 212. I was -- okay.

MR. ZENNER: Permanent zoning.

MR. STANTON: I move to approve permanent zoning -

MR. ZENNER: R-1 zoning.

MS. LOE: R-1.

MR. STANTON: -- R-1 zoning. Okay.

MS. LOE: Okay.

MR. STANTON: -- as it relates to Case 17-212.

MR. STRODTMAN: Thank you, Mr. Stanton, for the motion and Ms. Loe for the second. Commissioners, questions, discussion on the motion that we have in front of us? I see none. Ms. Loe, when you're ready for a roll call, please.

MS. LOE: Yes, Mr. Chairman.

Roll Call Vote (Voting "yes" is to recommend approval.) Voting Yes: Ms. Russell,

Mr. Toohey, Ms. Loe, Mr. Harder, Mr. MacMann, Mr. Stanton, Mr. Strodtman, Ms. Rushing. Motion carries 8-0.

MS. LOE: Unanimous nine votes in the approval. Motion carries.

MS. RUSHING: Eight.

MS. LOE: Oh, sorry. Eight.

MR. STRODTMAN: Thank you, Ms. Loe.MS. LOE: Thank you, Ms. Rushing.MR. STRODTMAN: The motion has been approved and will be -- our recommendation will be forwarded to City Council and they can use it in their consideration.

Move to approve permanent R-1 zoning

Yes: 8 - Harder, Loe, Rushing, Russell, Stanton, Strodtman, Toohey and MacMann

Excused: 1 - Burns

Case # 17-228

A request by A Civil Group (agent), on behalf of Cherry Hill Dental Associates (owners), for approval of a PD development plan to be known as "Gadbos Professional Offices". The1.36-acre property is located at the northwest corner of Nifong Boulevard and Santiago Drive.

MR. STRODTMAN: Moving on to the next case. At this time, I would like to ask any Commissioner who has had any ex parte communications prior to this meeting related to Case 17-228, please disclose that now so all Commissioners have the same information to consider on behalf of this case in front of us. I see no one, so thank you.

Case No. 17-228

A request by A Civil Group (agent), on behalf of Cherry Hill Dental Associates (owners), for approval of a PD development plan to be known as "Gadbois Professional Offices". The 1.36-acre property is located at the northwest corner of Nifong Boulevard and Santiago Drive.

MR. STRODTMAN: May we have a staff report, please?

Staff report was given by Mr. Pat Zenner of the Planning and Development Department. Staff recommends approval of the revised "Gadbois Professional Offices PD Plan" containing sign code compliant signage parameters.

MR. STRODTMAN: Thank you, Mr. Zenner. Commissioners, questions? Ms. Russell?

MS. RUSSELL: Is there any intention to light these signs?

MR. ZENNER: I will let the applicant's engineer or the -- I don't know if the applicant is here tonight to refer to that. It's my understanding they may be internally lit, so they -- it would make for a very interesting nontraditional type of sign as an obelisk if that is actually -- they are internally lit. But I'll let Mr. -- either Mr. Gebhardt or Mr. Darr answer those questions since they are the project managers for the project.

MS. RUSSELL: Okay.

MR. STRODTMAN: Mr. MacMann?

MR. MACMANN: A quick question. Moving forward, I've got -- well, I've got no problems with this wall signage, and their wall signage as is reliefed, you know, brought out and there's no rectangle around it. You -- you basically squashed the rectangle. Right?

MR. ZENNER: Yes. Well, yeah. Exactly.

MR. MACMANN: Okay. If -- in the future, if this situation were to occur similarly and we didn't squish the rectangle or it wasn't reliefed out, it wasn't pushed direct from the building the way MU Ellis Fischel's is on the hospital, the old -- the old hospital -- are you with me? It does the same thing. It sticks out from the building. How does this change things going forward or does it?

MR. ZENNER: I don't think it does. I would tell you that the way that the Code is written, the way that the sign code is written, it's a little bit archaic in how it identifies what our building and code enforcement staff is required to do to calculate. You have to - when you look at signage, you have to look at what the intent was. We didn't want a gargantuan sign. Typically, in codes that I have worked with, the calculation -- the method of calculation in how you draw the box around the text that's part of that, what is being proposed by the applicant is consistent with what I have seen previously. You draw a rectangle around the actual enlarged or small graphics. You don't do it based on an arbitrary box that goes around that fits all in it. What I would tell you is a recommended revision to the sign code may be appropriate when we go through our first round of revisions with the UDC in order to get to something that's a more contemporary application for sign measurement -- for sign area measurement.

MR. MACMANN: That's kind of where I was going. Thank you. Just so we can --MR. ZENNER: And I think that's a very valid -- it's very valid --

MR. MACMANN: -- archive that and -- in our -- label it, flag it so we can note it going forward.

MR. ZENNER: We will.

MR. MACMANN: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

MR. STRODTMAN: Any additional questions, Commissioners? I have question, Mr. Zenner. Are the pylon signs, are they four-sided? Is that -- would that be -- signage would be on four sides?

MR. ZENNER: Signage will be on two sides, and that's what stated within the sign note that's on the plan. So, again, you'll have signage on both south facing faces of those pylons that are in front of the building --

MR. STRODTMAN: Uh-huh.

MR. ZENNER: -- and then you would have signage only on the east and the west faces of the pylon. The internal -- the north-facing face and then the internal face would not have signage on it.

MR. STRODTMAN: Okay. Okay. I just saw the square and I was looking at the pictures in the back, you know. It was kind of -- I was just -- it's hard to read some of them. I also would assume that in the 3D views that are in the back of the -- of this packet, that the dumpster was just an oversight and was not included, but it is included on the plans; is that --

MR. ZENNER: That is -- that is likely the case.

MR. STRODTMAN: I was just making sure.

MR. ZENNER: And it would be required per Code to be enclosed, as well.

MR. STRODTMAN: Correct. I was just making sure. I saw it in the plan, but then I didn't see it in the pictures. I just wanted to make sure it was probably just an oversight, and the building was the focus and not the -- the dumpster. Commissioners, any additional questions before I open it to the public? I see none.

PUBLIC HEARING OPENED

MR. STRODTMAN: This is a public hearing. If there is anyone in the audience that would like to come forward, please do so.

MR. GEBHARDT: Good evening. My name is Jay Gebhardt; I'm a civil engineer with A Civil Group here in Columbia. And, first, I just want to thank the staff for their assistance in working with us to work through this project. I also want to thank the Gadbois for being my client because this is a nice project and they're trying to do a very nice building. And to answer your question, Ms. Russell, the signs are what I would consider backlit, similar -- they like what's going on with the Boone Hospital site, and that -- and so it would be that kind of feel and that kind of look. I'm really here to answer any questions, but I think Pat has done a very good job of explaining how we got here and what we're trying to accomplish. But if you guys have questions, I would be glad to answer them.

MR. STRODTMAN: Thank you, Mr. Gebhardt. Commissioners, are there any questions for this speaker? I see none. Thank you, sir.

MR. GEBHARDT: Thank you.

MR. STRODTMAN: Any additional speakers like to come forward at this time? I see no one.

PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED

MR. STRODTMAN: Commissioners, discussion, questions? Mr. MacMann?

MR. MACMANN: Unless my fellow Commissioners have something to say, in the matter of Case 17-228, Gadbois Professional Offices PD Plan, I move to approve as stated.

MR. STRODTMAN: Thank you, Mr. MacMann, for that motion. Do we have a second?

MS. LOE: Second.

MR. STRODTMAN: Ms. Loe, thank you for the second to the motion.

Commissioners, we have a motion on the table for approval by Mr. MacMann and

seconded by Ms. Loe. Do we need any additional discussion? I see none. Ms.

Vice-Chair, when you're ready for a roll call, please.

MS. LOE: Yes, Mr. Chair.

Roll Call Vote (Voting "yes" is to recommend approval.) Voting Yes: Ms. Russell.

Mr. Toohey, Ms. Loe, Mr. Harder, Mr. MacMann, Mr. Stanton, Mr. Strodtman, Ms. Rushing. Motion carries 8-0.

MS. LOE: Eight approval, zero denial. We have approval of the motion.

MR. STRODTMAN: Thank you, Ms. Vice-Chair. Our recommendation for approval of the revised Gadbois Professional Offices PD Plan containing the sign code compliant sign parameters will be forwarded to City Council for their consideration.

Move for approval of a PD development plan to be known as "Gadbois Professional Offices"

Yes: 8 - Harder, Loe, Rushing, Russell, Stanton, Strodtman, Toohey and MacMann

Excused: 1 - Burns

VI. PUBLIC COMMENTS

MR. STRODTMAN: Anyone within the public who would like to come forward at this time, you're welcome to do so.

(There were no comments from the public.)

VII. STAFF COMMENTS

MR. STRODTMAN: Mr. Zenner, would you have any comments for us this evening? MR. ZENNER: Yes. The next meeting will be October 19, two weeks from now, same time, same place. You'll be having a work session at 5:30. I have one of my other staff members hopefully get you through more than just two uses. And then you'll have your regular Planning Commission meeting at 7:00 p.m. Your items on the agenda are consisting of these four. You will have the new CPS Middle School Subdivision Plat. This is the new southwest middle school down off of Sinclair Road. That will be the preliminary. We will have a Quaker Oats plat. This is basically a final plat of an existing surveyed tract of land that Quaker Oats currently -- Quaker Oats' building is currently on. The reason for this plat is because they are doing an expansion and in order to be able to obtain a building permit, you must have a legal lot. So this lot, not having been previously platted is being platted for the first time and that is what this plat represents. There's really no significant issues associated with that document. And then the long-awaited Caulder and Brooks combination of activities that we have, the Caulder annexation, which is -- and permanent zoning. This is what is directly across from the Elks Lodge on WW, R-S to R-1, and then the Brooks Subdivision Plat No. 2, which is a continuation, in essence, of what is up off of Rolling Hills today that was part of the Richland Road annexation request, roughly a 400-lot single-family subdivision that's proposed. So, you can get your context and your bearings, CPS middle school site here on your left, the Quaker Oats plat here on the right, and then your Brooks -- Brooks and Caulder annexation requests here, exact same property. So this is not like our last annexation request at the meeting prior where we had two different areas. It is the exact same area and the subdivision plan does connect to the northern northeast portion which is the first phase of the Brooks development. I had handed out to you this evening during work session a notice in regards to the 2018 Smart Growth Conference, February 1st through the 3rd of 2018. You will need to discuss amongst yourselves and there will be an agenda item for you to discuss on the October 19th agenda as to who may want to go. I have recently received budget information from the City clerk based on the FY18 budget. I do not know what the dollar amount is yet. It was not increased from last year, so what I will tell you is is there may be a financial limitation as it relates to sending multiple Commissioners. Depending on what the costs are for travel, we may have enough to send two of you, unlike what we have done in the past where we have been able to send more due to the more cost effective location. So you will need to discuss amongst yourselves who has been recently and whose turn it may be in the rotation. So that'll be an item for you to maybe spend 15, 20 minutes on at the next meeting. Check your schedules, find out if you've got time. If you want to make a bigger trip out of it, you're more welcome to do so, but we won't cover your dime. With that as well, we will come back to you with some additional information in regards to our rules of procedure. I will provide you again a word editable document of what Ms. Rushing had provided, along with probably a tentative special work session date for some time in the early part of December of this year, and once we have all of Commissioners back just before our Christmas break. With that, that is all I have to offer for this evening. Thank you very

much for your attention.

MR. STRODTMAN: Thank you, Mr. Zenner.

VIII. COMMISSION COMMENTS

MR. STRODTMAN: Commissioners, any comments for the public? I see none.

IX. NEXT MEETING DATE - October 19, 2017 @ 7pm (tentative)

X. ADJOURNMENT

MR. STRODTMAN: Would anyone like to make a motion for adjournment?

MS. LOE: I'll move to adjourn.

MR. STRODTMAN: Do we have a second?

MS. STANTON: Second.

MS. RUSSELL: Second.

MR. STRODTMAN: Mr. Stanton, thank you for that second. All in favor, thumbs up.

(Unanimous vote for approval.)

MR. STRODTMAN: We're adjourned. Have a nice evening.

(The meeting was adjourned at 8:09 p.m.)

(Off the record.)

Move to adjourn

Members of the public may attend any open meeting. For requests for accommodations related to disability, please call 573-874-7214. In order to assist staff in making the appropriate arrangements for your accommodation, please make your request as far in advance of the posted meeting date as possible.